ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVIVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
SENATE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 14, 2007
3:35 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE
Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Jay Ranras
Representati ve Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

SENATE LABOR AND COVMERCE

Senator Johnny Ellis, Chair
Senat or Con Bunde

VEMBERS ABSENT
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMVERCE
Al'l nmenbers present
SENATE LABOR AND COMVERCE
Senator Gary Stevens, Vice Chair
Senat or Bettye Davis
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S)

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opnent

Clark “dick” Bishop — Fairbanks

Comm ssioner, Departnent of Commerce, Community, & Economc
Devel opnent

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES -1- March 14, 2007



Emi| Notti — Anchorage

Regul at ory Conm ssi on of Al aska

Kate G ard — Anchorage
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

CLARK “CLI CK” BI SHOP, Acting Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointed conm ssioner of the
Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnment.

EM L NOTITI, Acting Comm ssioner

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointed conm ssioner of the
Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent.

KATE G ARD, Commi ssioner, Chair

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska (RCA)

Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
( DCCED)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Regul atory
Conmmi ssi on of Al aska.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR JOHNNY ELLIS called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittees to order at 3:35:08
PM Senators Bunde and Ellis, and Representatives Gardner,
Gatto, Neuman, Buch, and O son were present at the call to
order. Representatives Ranras and LeDoux arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG&( S)

Conmi ssi oner, Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

3:36:15 PM

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES - 2- March 14, 2007



CHAI R ELLI'S announced that the first order of business would be
the confirmation hearing on the appointnment of Cdark “dick”
Bi shop as comm ssioner to the Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent .

3:36: 23 PM

CLARK “CLICK" BI SHOP, Acting Comm ssioner, Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf or ce Devel opnent (DLWD), began by giving a brief history of
his residency in Al aska. He then offered information regarding
his enploynment history as it relates to this position,
highlighting 17 years of experience working as an operating
engi neer. He also shared information regarding his famly and
i nterests. H's interests include: dog nmushing, boat racing,
and vol unteer work. He explained that his love for volunteer
work led him to his nobst recent position with the Al aska
Operating Engi neers Enployers Training Trust. He shared his
experience working with apprentices, offering his belief that
this may be a “calling” for him He said “[It] took a little
soul -searching and thought for ne to cone here, but ... finally,

| made up ny mind to ... take this challenge on.” He stated
his desire to “pay it forward” to the people of Al aska.

CHAIR ELLIS thanked Acting Conmm ssioner Bishop for  his
wi |l lingness to serve the state in this capacity.

3:41: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to what Acting Conm ssioner
Bi shop considers to be the biggest problens facing the state,
and how he intends to deal with these problens.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER BI SHOP replied that he would i ke to see the
creation of nore industry jobs. He opined that nore entry-Ievel
positions are needed. He shared his belief that there is room
for inprovenent in the Alaska resident hire rate throughout the
state. He has net with representatives fromthe fishing and oil

i ndustries in order to nove forward with this goal. He opi ned
that inproving Alaska hire would create nore job opportunities
for Al askans. He offered to neet with nenbers to discuss this

further, if so desired.
3:43:52 PM

ACTING COW SSIONER BISHOP, in response to a question from
Representative O son regarding the State Training Enploynent

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES - 3- March 14, 2007



Program (STEP), stated that he would like to create additiona
funding for training entities to apply for grants.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON questioned whether it would be a nore
equitable split between union and non-uni on organi zati ons.

ACTING COM SSIONER BISHOP replied that the funds wll be
avai lable to everyone, and stated that he intends to maxim ze
t hi s funding.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON stated that historically, this has not been
t he case.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER BI SHOP opined that it wll be a conpetitive
grant process.

3:45: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN in regard to private industry funding
education, stated that finding a way to allow this has been very

difficult. One of his goals has been to [create grade
appropriate prograns that conbine core subjects with *“on the
j ob” education]. He opined that nmath and reading are |earned
through applied sciences, and inquired as to how the

af orenenti oned prograns nmay be created at the secondary | evel.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER BI SHOP replied that he has been working with
the Departnent of Education and Early Developnent (EED) to
create a vehicle for work readiness skills for high school
students. He offered to share the details of this at a later
dat e.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN comented that it is inportant to allow
private industry to fund educati on.

3:49: 47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX explained that she represents nmany snal
comuni ties where unenploynent is a problem She inquired as to

the ways by which the DLWD night get nobre work to these
vi |l | ages.

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER BI SHOP replied that nore detail is needed

regarding the specific area, and the resources avail able. He
surm sed that public works jobs conme to small villages once
every 20 years. He stated that previously, he was responsible

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES -4- March 14, 2007



for training rural residents for specific projects comng to the
comunity.

3:52:35 PM

ACTING COW SSIONER BISHOP, in response to a question from
Representative Gatto, explained that a tenplate is in place for

training pipeline workers. However, it would need to be
expanded to train a |arge anount of workers in a short period of
time. In response to an additional question, he stated that the

programis able to produce an entry-level worker in six weeks.
3:54: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAVRAS stated that it can be difficult to find
entry |evel workers. He shared his hope that the DLWD woul d
take a “broad approach” in regard to the J-1 visa workers, which
he opined are an integral part of the seasonal workforce in the

hospitality industry. In regard to the state m ninum wage, he
shared his hope that the DLWD woul d appoi nt someone to assist in
finding a resolution for both enployers and enployees. He

stressed the inportance of a resolution that does not restrict
wage increases while trying to neet federal and state m nimum
wage requirenents. In regard to union versus non-union
facilities, he expressed hope that the DLWD woul d take an *even-
keel ed approach” to the value of individuals that go through
either type of facility. Finally, he explained that there is a
need for a “just in time” delivery of entry-level workers for
state positions. He opined that the DLW needs an individua

who can facilitate this

3:59:11 PM

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER BI SHOP assured nenbers that he is able to
honestly distingui sh between union and non-uni on workers.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to how the university system
and the DLWD mi ght work together to facilitate the training that
is needed to fill new correctional facility jobs in certain
areas of the state. He pointed out that schools are offering
cl asses that are required, but these are not being recognized.
Therefore, students are not receiving credit for classes already
taken, and nust take these again through the D vision of
Corrections.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER BI SHOP replied that he has many ideas. One
i dea involves bringing entry-level workers into state jobs, and

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES - 5- March 14, 2007



training within the departnment. He stated that he needs to neet
with the departnents involved and the education system to
devel op a vehicle to supply the aforenenti oned workf orce.

4:03: 02 PM

SENATOR BUNDE inquired as to how the reconmmendations put forth
by the governor’s transition team m ght be inpl enented.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER BI SHOP replied that he issued a copy of the
transition report to each director within the DLVD. Wile a
nunber of the recommendations nmet with |egal concerns, the DLW
has taken action on several of the remaining reconmendations.
In response to an additional question, he explained that the
Al aska Workforce Investnment Board (AWB) has a new director,
adding that it is his goal to make this the “voice” of workforce
devel opnent in Al aska.

SENATOR BUNDE thanked Acting Conmm ssioner Bishop for his
wi | lingness to serve.

4:07:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH acknow edged that this position requires a
ot of work, and may result in a loss of incone. He expressed
his appreciation for Acting Comm ssioner Bishop’s willingness to
take this on. In regard to apprenticeship prograns, he opined
that converting to a state program nay be appropri ate.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER BI SHOP replied that this is included in his
list of goals for the Departnent.

4:09: 20 PM

CHAIR ELLIS stated that he has several concerns to discuss,
possibly at a future hearing of the Senate Labor and Commerce
Standing Committee. In regard to the DLWD decision on the
Anchorage Hockey Oficials, Inc. qualifying as an enployer, he
shared concerns regarding the possibility of creating additional
fees, and the effect this would have on youth and their
famlies. He stated that this could also be discussed at a
later tine.

Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Commerce, Community, & Economc
Devel opnent

4:10: 33 PM

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES - 6- March 14, 2007



CHAIR ELLI'S announced that the next order of business would be
the confirmation hearing on the appointnent of EmI| Notti as
comm ssioner of the Departnent of Conmerce, Conmunity, &
Econom c Devel opnent .

4:11: 03 PM

EML NOITI, Acting Comm ssi oner, Department of  Commerce,
Community, & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), began by giving a
brief history of his residence in Al aska. He graduated from M.
Edgecunbe H gh School in Sitka and spent 4 years in the US
Navy. Following this, he earned a bachelor’s of science degree
(BS) in Aeronautical Engineering and Electronics Engineering.
He previously served as Conmm ssioner of the Departnent of
Community and Regional Affairs. He stated that he did not seek

out the position of DCCED conm ssioner, adding that “it took
some consideration” to take it on. “I find it very interesting
- very challenging,” he said. He commented that the Departnent
effects the lives of all Al askans. Additionally, all state

agenci es report to DCCED.
4:13:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN in regard to the formation of boroughs in
Al aska, asked how the DCCED plans to nobve towards the
constitutional mandate to create nore boroughs within the state.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER NOTTI shared a recent situation regarding
the formation of a borough in Skagway. He explained that while
previously, he was able to get involved in discussions with the
| ocal boundary commission, he is now unable to do so. He opined
that boroughs should be fornmed; however, they should cover
several comunities. This would allow |ocal resources to
support the various cities within the borough. He opined that
it is not in the states best interest to have enclaves that are
not taxed by a |arge group. He stated that DCCED will do what
IS necessary to encourage borough devel opnent.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN opined that this is inportant, especially
when the status of education funding is considered.

4:17: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO observed that many Al askan Native | eaders

are graduates of M. Edgecunbe Hi gh School. He asked whether it
woul d be worthwhile to consider creating nore schools |ike this.

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES -7- March 14, 2007



ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER NOTTI replied yes. He stated that this
would allow many children to be renoved from unhealthy hone
environnments, although not all home situations are unhealthy.
He opined that this would have a positive effect on youth. He
shared details of his experience attending boarding schools,

beginning at age 11. He explained that the students
participated in the activities needed to mintain the
facilities. He stated that work ethic nust be |earned at an
early age, adding that high school is a good place to teach
this. In response to an additional question, he shared his

belief that 14 years old is a good age to begin attending
boar di ng school .

4:21:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to what steps would be taken
to assist in inproving the Al aska Industrial Developnent and
Export Authority (Al DEA). Additionally, he questioned the
Department’s position on the situation in Bristol Bay involving
Pebbl e M ne.

ACTING COMM SSIONER NOTTI replied that he needs to gather
additional information regarding AIDEA. He stated that he would
neet with the comm ssioners on the board and discuss this. In
regard to Pebble Mne, he stated that DCCED is responsible for
“responsi bl e econom c devel opnent.” He pointed out that other
departnents are responsible for environnental concerns. Wi | e
he is not taking a position on this issue, his job is to ensure
that the environment is “friendly to business.”

CHAIR ELLIS, in regard to high-speed internet access statew de,
inquired as to whether the state might have a roll in making
t hi s happen.

ACTING COWMM SSIONER NOTTI  replied that this would greatly
i ncrease communi cation across the state. He then comented on
the various types of internet access and rel ated costs.

CHAIR ELLI S requested that this be given further consideration.
SENATOR BUNDE stated that he shares concerns regarding urban and
rural youth and their work ethic. He then thanked Acting
Comm ssioner Notti for his willingness to serve.

4:27:16 PM

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES - 8- March 14, 2007



ACTING COW SSIONER NOTTI replied that he |ooks forward to
working with the | egislature.

Regul at ory Conmi ssi on of Al aska

4:28:12 PM

CHAIR ELLIS announced that the final order of business would be
the confirmation hearing of Kate Gard, appointee to the
Regul at ory Conmi ssi on of Al aska.

KATE d ARD, Commi ssioner, Chair, Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska
(RCA), Departnment of Commerce, Conmmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent
(DCCED), began by giving a brief history of her experience with
t he RCA. She explained that she has been chairman of the RCA
for three years. Her goals as chairman have included increased
transparency, inproved internal and external accountability, and
lifting the regulatory burden, in order to pronote econonic
devel opnment in the state of Al aska. She stated that she is a
certified public accountant (CPA) and offered details regarding
her work history. She said:

| have a great desire to serve the public good in

Al aska. It has been a state that has been good to ne.
And | work very hard to try to give back to Al aska.
It has taken ... someone who has probably noderate
intellect and noderate skills, and ... given nme an
opportunity to grow at a nuch higher |level than | ever
thought | would be. So, | am hunbled by the

opportunity to serve.

M5. G ARD went on to explain the reasons she is a candidate for
reappoi ntnent to the RCA. These include a know edge of Al aska’s
conplex regulatory environnment and the education tine invested.
Additionally, she is known anong the federal organizations, and
has worked with the Al aska Congressional Del egation. She opi ned
that she has a “fairly good” reputation, and the legislature is
aware of her good qualities, along with any character flaws.

4:31: 50 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN rel ated a story of his positive experience
with the RCA and its assistance with the Tal keetna Water and

Sewer Project.

REPRESENTATI VE = OLSON, in response to a question from
Representative Ranras, explained that the confirmations would

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES -9- March 14, 2007



not be advanced at this tine, thus allowi ng additional tine for
guesti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that he has heard reports of the
RCA being controlled by a three-vote mpjority, of which M.
Gard is a menber. Referring to specific RCA conmm ssioners, he
explained that he had also heard reports that M. Gard
advocated the appointnment of the aforenentioned conm ssioners.
He stated that this is troubling, if the reports are accurate

This nakes individuals in the utility industry nervous, as a

voting pattern has energed. He shared his understanding that
sonme utilities feel intimdated with regard to com ng before the
RCA to level any criticism He questioned whether it is

appropriate to advocate for the appointnment of conmm ssioners,
and inquired as to how concerned the utilities should be that
concerns will be dealt with fairly. He opined that the state
has “effectively intimdated the utilities.”

M5. G ARD stated that these are inportant comments, and should
be thoroughly addressed. Therefore, she would attenpt to answer
the questions, and would also supply further information. She
expl ained that the RCA retains records of all decisions nade and
panels that are assigned. While she does not know how
frequently the aforenentioned nenbers are on panels together,
this data can be evaluated to see how often this occurs. She
stated that she did advocate for the appointnent of certain
commi ssi oners. She explained that the RCA needs high quality
i ndividuals, and her goal is to find and pronote the best
candi dat es possi bl e. She said “l scoured around to find them
| think |’ve done a good job at that. | think you have good
quality comm ssioners as a result of that.” She shared her
belief that this is not an unusual practice. The control point,
she said, is that the governor ultimately selects the candi date,
which is then approved by the |egislature. She detailed her
reasons for pronoti ng Comm ssi oner Ant hony Price and
Comm ssi oner Jan W/ son.

4:39:48 PM

M5. G ARD stated that the utilities have expressed concern about
di scussing concerns with the comm ssioners. She said:

That intimdation factor, | think, exists because the
utilities are concerned that, whatever they say, we
will then go into adjudication and make a decision

based on an adjudicatory record opposed to them
because they don't like Kate Gard or they don't |ike

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES - 10- March 14, 2007



this last decision. ... | think that the Al aska
Legislature provides an extraordinarily positive
control point over the activities of the RCA But
there is another control point over the activities of
the RCA, and that is superior court. So, if the RCA
is making decisions that are reactionary to the
unhappi ness of wutilities or pipeline carriers, those
decisions wll be appealed to the superior court, and
they won’'t be based on a record, and they won't be
uphel d. And what you will begin to see, is decision

after decision, wll be overturned. That’ s not
been the case. The RCA' s decisions in sonme nmajor
issues, such as the Trans-Alaska Pipeline System
(TAPS) issue ... have all been upheld recently ... by
t he superior court.

M5. G ARD stated that she is sorry the utilities feel unable to
talk to the RCA, and expressed uncertainty as to whether this is
wi dely spread. There are utilities that make recommendations
for inprovenment through regulation and through the statutory
revi sion process, and several utilities have expressed that the
RCA has “never been nore open.”

4:43:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER questi oned whether the RCA would benefit
fromreinstating an executive director position.

M5. G ARD replied that this position was renoved by the

| egi sl ature. She explained that the executive director had
conplete control over the staff, which did not reflect the
adj udi catory decisions of the comm ssioners. The chairman of

the RCA is elected by the conmm ssioners, for a term of one year.
She stated that if any of the comm ssioners on the RCA are
unhappy with the policy or admnistrative direction that the
agency is taking, the chair may be elected out. She opined that
current statute contains protections against the chairman noving
in a direction that the remaining commissioners are not
favorable to. She stated that she is unsure of the value the
executive director position would add.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that this would be a tine-
managenent t ool

M5. G ARD explained that the utilities have expressed concern

regardi ng the executive director position. The RCA did consider
seeking legislation to provide greater support for the chair;

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES -11- March 14, 2007



however, the chair currently bears the burden of adm nistering
t he agency.

CHAIR ELLIS pointed out that Ms. G ard has been the chairnman for
three years, and inquired as to the process of electing the
chair.

M5. G ARD explained that the chairmanship is limted to three

years. The chairman is elected by his or her peers. She
explained that she is restricted from running for chairman
again, as she has reached the aforenentioned limt. The

chai rman makes $200 per nonth nore than other conm ssioners on
t he RCA.

CHAIR ELLIS questioned whether this limtation is wse, and
whet her this should be changed.

M5. GARD replied no. She stated that prior to being
reappointed as chair, she would have recommended that the
comm ssioners vote for the chair. If the chair is doing a good

job, and the feedback fromthe legislature and the utilities is
positive, the conmssioners can be trusted to vote for

| eader shi p. However, she opined that to state that changing
this law “is a good idea” would be a conflict of interest, as
she is reaching the end of her chairmanship. She expressed
confidence in the other conmssioners’ ability to act as
chairman of the RCA. She said “I have learned a |ot serving as
chair. | have hoped to have nade a positive inpression. And |
have faith in ny colleagues, that they will also |lead well.”
4:50: 39 PM

CHAIR ELLIS pointed out that the |egislature has heard criticism
regarding tinelines and deadlines, and asked that M. Gard
address this.

M5. JQARD replied that the tinelines followed by the RCA are set
in statute, and were put in place as a result of conplaints from
the wutility industry. At the tinme these conplaints were
recei ved, the RCA had 400-500 outstandi ng dockets, and currently
has 101 open dockets. She opined that the tinelines should be
consi dered successful. The RCA has been in conpliance wth
these tinelines wth the exception of one mat hemati cal
calculation error which resulted in a one-day violation of the
af orenentioned tineline. She then explained that the RCA opened
a docket to discuss tinelines with regulated utilities and
pi peline carriers. During this docket, the teleconmunications

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES -12- March 14, 2007



i ndustry proposed a one-year tineline for everything that is not
covered by current statute. The RCA feels that this is a “fine
i dea.” The results of this docket have been submitted to the
governor’s office for consideration. She stated that the RCA is
pro-tinmeline. She explained that the discovery process consumnes
the majority of the tineline, which allows all parties to put
data on the record. The RCA nust decide the case within 90 days
of the final hearing date on a “noderately conplex” issue, and
120 days on a “highly conplex” case. This deadline has been
pl aced by the RCA

4:55:24 PM

M5. G ARD went on to say that the statutory deadlines set by the
| egislature were originally intended to preserve due-process.
She explained this as it relates to a recent case involving
ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany (ENSTAR). She stated that she does
not have a problem with new statutory tinelines; however, she
would like to ensure that the due-process rights of all parties
w shing to participate are protected.

CHAIR ELLIS stated that this discussion would be continued
during separate neetings of the House Labor and Comrerce
Standing Conmittee and Senate Labor and Commerce Standing
Conmi ttee.

M5. G ARD, in closing, expressed gratitude for the opportunity
to coment. She recognizes that the RCA is a challenging
agency. She opined that it is a good agency, and nenbers
believe it can inprove. She shared her belief that the RCA w il
continue to nove forward, along wth her faith that the
legislature will reinstate the agency.

CHAIR ELLI S thanked Ms. G ard for her willingness to serve.
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the joint

meeting of the Senate and House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Comm ttees was adjourned at 4:57:36 PM

JT. H'S L& COW TTEES - 13- March 14, 2007



